Town of Minnesott Beach
Board of Commissioners’ Meeting
February 9, 2021 Minutes

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday February 9, 2021 at 7:00 PM at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Tim Fowler, Commissioner Adam Garfinkel,
Commissioner Cliff Braly, and Commissioner David Gaskins. Commissioner Kenny
Campen was present by phone.

Others present were Town Manager Carolyn Braly, Town Clerk Denise Burns, Carlos Melo,
Ken Howard, Karl Thurbut, Carol and Bill De Moraaville, Don and Phyllis Land, and Jim
Root. Mark Duggan was present by phone.

Mayor Fowler discussed procedures for the meetmg so members of the town would know
what to expect.

Mayor Fowler called the meeting to order at 7:00pm with a moment of silence and led
everyone in the pledge of allegiance to the flag

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to December 8, 2020 minutes.
Commissioner Braly moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to the February 9, 2020 agenda.
Commissioner Braly moved to accept the agenda. All ayes.

Commissioner Gaskins made a motion to go into public hearing. All ayes.

Public Hearing- § 151.016 Location of Accessory Structures: Mayor Fowler stated the
purpose of the hearing is fo amend the wording of the ordinance as follows: (A} Accessory
structures shall not be erected in the areas between public or paved private street
rights-of-way and the nearest side of the principal building as built, the required side yard
setback for the zoning district, within five feet of the rear property line, or within ten feet of
the principal building.

A resident asked if there is a number of sheds allowed on a property. Mayor Fowler said
there is no limit to the number of sheds allowed on a property in the ordinances.

Commissioner Braly moved to go out of the Public Hearing back into the regular session.
All ayes. .

Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to approve the amended ordinance §151.016 Location of
Accessory Structures. Commissioner Garfinkel made a motion to approve the amended
ordinance. All ayes.



Mr. Ken Howard- On/off Frame Home Concerns: Mayor Fowler said that Mr. Howard has
written the town a letter addressing his concerns. Each of the board members has had a
chance to read the letter. Mr. Howard said he wants to make sure the town knows the
difference between modular homes and manufactured homes. Mr. Howard said he was
concerned about the low cost of a recently built home bringing down the value of existing
homes. After additional discussion, Mayor Fowler said the planning board had discussed
this issue and had recommendations for the Commissioners, He encouraged Mr. Howard to
come to the planning board meeting when the item is discussed.

Commissioner Garfinkel said the planning board had recommended updating the definitions
of manufactured and modular homes.

The Mayor said planning board meetings dates and time are on the website.

Country Club Drive West Engineering Report: Mayor Fowler explained that Thomas
Engineering firm will do an evaluation of the drainage, culverts, and road for $6,800. The
proposal is made a part of these minutes by reference. Commissioner Gaskins asked how
long it had been since an evaluation had been done for the entire town. Mayor Fowler said it
was done in 2010. Commissioner Braly then made a motion to accept the proposal. All ayes.
Mayor Fowler said he will request it be completed well before hurricane season.

Marina Concerns: Mayor Fowler said there were two issues with the marina. One is there
are large shipping containers, metal boxes, and large piles of debris are being stored on R-15
Single Family zoning. There are no allowances for such storage or construction. There was
sand blasting being done in the area. Mayor Fowler recommended the town send a certified
letter allowing 72 hours for everything to be moved out of the area. Mr. Melo said the items
are there temporarily and he will have it all moved onto the marina property.

Commissioner Garfinkel said the town received a letter from a property owner asking what
is going on. The town wants to be as cooperative as possible. Commissioner Gaskins said
communication needs to be kept open so complaints can be addressed. Town Manager
Carolyn Braly stated that a complaint had been made regarding an unmanned fire on the
premises. The fire department was called.

Mayor Fowler stated the second issue to be addressed is the complete clearing of land. There
will be a citation issued by DEQ for clearing the land without a permit. He said the forest
service and the fire department was there today. Mayor Fowler said he’d received email
concerns about the privately owned lake that abuts the property. Mr. Melo asked if he needs
a permit to remove vegetation from his property. Mayor Fowler said yes it is a state
requirement.

Planning Board: Commissioner Garfinkel announced the planning board discussed
section § 151.037 TERM DEFINITION concerning the difference between modular and
manufactured homes. Manufactured and mobile homes are built to HUD standards and
modular homes are built to state building codes. The planning board is recommending the
town does not distinguish between on frame and off frame modular homes.



Commissioner Garfinkel and Town Manager Carolyn Braly attended a School of
Government workshop to consolidate town ordinances 160A and 153A into 160D. He
reported a Code of Conduct (Ethics) will be added to the ordinances. Commissioner
Garfinkel said, where we had gotten “guidance” that our ordinances should specifically
identify non-permissible uses where we currently list permissible uses. The changes in the
law and the consolidation efforts have nothing to do with creating mandates.

Town Projects: Commissioner Braly reported that the problem in Ms. Johnson’s yard has
been resolved by cementing the drop inlet area.

The town is waiting for an estimate for couplings for the Country Club Drive and the Brad
Rice property.

Commissioner Braly, after some discussion, recommends keeping the tractor we have. He
said it works for the town projects. It will cost the town if we try to sell it and purchase a
4-wheel drive tractor.

Tewn Manager’s report: Town Manager Carolyn Braly announced that the
commissioners have a copy of the 2020 audit report. There were no irregularities. If anyone
has any questions regarding the report, please let her know.

There were three approved zoning permits. A garage will be added to 312 S. Brightleaf; a
new home will be built at 28 Dragonfly Circle; a fence will be added to 142 Neuse River
Drive; a shed for a home on Burton Farms Road.

The deadline for CARES Funding has been extended to December 21, 2021. We now have
Zoom and a webcam has been ordered for town meetings. We still have approximately
$7,000 left.

Financial Report: Commissiorier Gaskins reported the town’s finances as within
limits in all areas. The Town’s current assets as of January 31, 2021 are: First Citizen's
Bank Checking $5,731.09; First Citizen's Bank MM $396,806.69; United Bank
savings $219,449.05; North Carolina Management Trust is $211,434.78; Petty Cash
$50.00. Total assets for the Town are $1,095,473.97.

Miscellaneous: Mayor Fowler announced that the county has issued a contract to
Cayton Utilitics for the repair of the water line from Bennett Road to Best Lane. The
work was supposed to begin yesterday, and they have 60-90 days to complete the
project.

Someone attending the meeting asked if there is a written policy in R-15 for removal
of vegetation. Mayor Fowler said there is not. Commissioner Braly said there has to
be a plan for an acre or more. The town relies on the state.

There being no further business, Commissioner Braly moved to adjourn and go into closed
session. All Ayes. s

@jﬁu}){ j(:%mww/

Denise Burns, Town Clerk




